
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
 

AGENDA 
 

November 13, 2013 
 

  



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
MINUTES OCTOBER 29, 2013 ................................................................................................................................. 3 

AGENDA NOVEMBER 26, 2013 ............................................................................................................................... 8 

CASE NO 1  2506 13TH ST SE .................................................................................................................................. 10 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 11 

LOCATION MAP 2506 13TH ST SE .......................................................................................................................... 12 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 14 
LOCATION MAP  3503 PINEHURST DR SW ............................................................................................................... 15 

CASE NO 3  1018 SHERMAN ST SE ........................................................................................................................ 16 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 17 
LOCATION MAP 1018 SHERMAN ST SE .................................................................................................................... 18 

CASE NO 4  4505 ARROWHEAD DR SE .................................................................................................................. 19 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 20 
LOCATION MAP 4505 ARROWHEAD DR SE .............................................................................................................. 21 

CASE NO 5  214 6TH AVE SE ................................................................................................................................... 22 

LEASE AGREEMENT ................................................................................................................................................. 23 
COMBINED PICTURES FOR CASE 4 & 5 ..................................................................................................................... 24 
PICTURE 1 KITCHEN CASE 4 & 5 ............................................................................................................................... 25 
PICTURE 2 TRAILER CASE 4 & 5 ................................................................................................................................ 26 
PIC. 3 ST. VIEW CASE 4 & 5 EXT. VEGGIE STAND ....................................................................................................... 27 
PICTURE 4 STREET VIEW CASE 4 & 5 ........................................................................................................................ 28 
LOCATION MAP  216 6TH AVE SE .............................................................................................................................. 29 

CASE NO 6  641 HOLLY ST NE ............................................................................................................................... 30 

LOCATION MAP 641 HOLLY ST NE ........................................................................................................................... 31 
 

  

2 
 



MINUTES OCTOBER 29, 2013 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:   Chairman Kent Lawrence, Messrs. , Mr. Larry Waye, Mr. , Mr. Greg 
Dobbs and Ms. Frances Tate  

 
SUPERNUMERARIES:   Mr. Mike Harris (Sally Jo Green-attended the pre-meeting) 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:    Mr. Bob Sims, Inspector 
         Mr. Wally Terry, Director 
      …..and Custodian of Records 
         Mr. Herman Marks, City Attorney 
         Mr. Chip Alexander, Assistant City Attorney 
         Mrs. Karen Smith, Planner 
         Ms. Judy Bosworth, Recorder 
 
Chairman Kent Lawrence called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at 
City Hall.  Mr. Bob Sims called the roll.   
 
Ms. Larry Waye moved to approve the minutes of the June meeting as printed.  Mr. Greg Dobbs 
seconded the motion.  On a voice vote, the motion carried. 
 
The Board considered the following applications and appeals. 
 
CASE NO 1 
 
Application and appeal of Rickey L. Johnson for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for a window cleaning business located at 1507 
Magnolia St SE property located in a R-1 Single-Family Zoning District 
 
Rickey L. Johnson presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Johnson stated he would like an 
administrative office for a residential and commercial window washing business.  Mr. Johnson 
further stated he has one employee that he would pick up and take to the jobsite. and his 
equipment would be kept in the garage. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mr. Larry Waye moved to approve this home occupation request as submitted.  Mr. Greg Dobbs 
seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 

3 
 



CASE NO 2 
 
Application and appeal of Wendy Turner for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for music lessons and individual instruction 
conducted offsite and the creation of paintings, mixed media art and graphic design to be sold on 
the internet at 804 Kennilworth Rd SW, property located in a R-2 Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
Ms. Wendy Turner presented this case to the Board.  Ms. Turner stated she would like an 
administrative office to teach piano and voice off-site; additionally she would like to create 
paintings, mixed media art and graphic design via computer and sell on-line. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mrs. Smith questioned the applicant about the painting and mixed media and then recommended 
approval. 
 
Mr. Mike Harris moved to approve this home occupation request as submitted.  Ms. Frances Tate 
seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 3 
 
Application and appeal of Matt Heinlein for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for a tree service business at 1304 Northmead St SW, 
property located in a R-2 Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Matt Heinlein presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Heinlein stated he would like an 
administrative office for a tree service business.   
 
Chairman, Kent Lawrence stated to the applicant that he could not store heavy equipment at the 
home nor on a lot down the street as indicated on his application.  Chairman, Lawrence 
additionally stated he was allowed to store his trailer in the backyard. 
 
Mr. Heinlein stated the owner was aware of his request, there will be no additional traffic to the 
area, he will have a sign on his vehicle but no address and he will pick up his employees or they 
will meet at jobsite. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval with the condition that the 
heavy equipment is stored off-site. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department would recommend approval for administrative office 
only as long as the heavy equipment was stored off-site. 
 
Mr. Greg Dobbs moved to approve an administrative office only with the condition that no heavy 
equipment be stored at his house or any other house in the neighborhood; however his trailer 

4 
 



would be allowed at his home.  Ms. Frances Tate seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote the 
motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 4 
 
Application and appeal of Kristin Patton for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for a website design business located at 302 11th Ave 
NW, property located in a R-3 Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
This case was moved to the end of the meeting because the applicant was not present when the 
case was called.  The case was called again at the end of the meeting. 
The Board voted to dismiss this case due to failure of the applicant to appear before the Board 
and present her case. 
 
CASE NO 5  
 
Application and appeal of Trevor Butcher for a variance from section 25-80 and as defined in 
Article III, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to allow for the use of an existing 
nonconforming sign at 910 6th Ave SE, property located in a B-1 Local Shopping Zoning 
District.  
 
Mr. Trevor Butcher presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Trevor stated he wanted to use an 
existing 20 year old sign by re-facing and painting it.  Mr. Trevor also stated  
It would be cost effective for him to be able to use the existing sign rather than having to obtain a 
new sign. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department had no comment. 
 
Mr. Larry Waye moved to approve this request as submitted.  Ms. Frances Tate seconded the 
motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 6  
 
Application and appeal of Mark Manion for a use permitted on appeal from section 25-113 and 
as defined in Article V, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to allow the use of an 
temporary sales office trailer for a period of 60 days not to exceed 90 days at 809 Beltline Rd 
SW STE B, property is located in a M-1A Expressway Commercial Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Mark Manion presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Manion stated they would like to install 
a temporary sales office in front of a new business that is not yet open.  Mr. Manion stated the 
trailer would allow them to sell memberships to their business while the building was being 
completed.  Mr. Manion also stated the owner was aware of the request.  In addition, the 
temporary sales office will be ADA compliant and a temporary power line will be run from the 

5 
 



main building to the trailer for power.  Mr. Manion also stated the trailer would not be in use past 
the allowed 90 days, in fact he hoped the business would open before the 25th of December. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department had no comment. 
 
Mr. Mike Harris moved to approve this request as submitted.  Mr. Larry Waye seconded the 
motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried with a 4 to 1 vote. 
 
CASE NO 7 
 
Application and appeal of Mark Manion for a 60 square foot area variance from Section 25-
77(e)(2) and as defined in Article III, as amended and adopted,  of the Zoning Ordinance to 
allow for a 194 square-foot attached sign at 809 Beltline Rd SW STE B, property is located in an 
M-1A Expressway Commercial Zoning District.  
 
Mr. Mark Manion presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Manion stated he would like an 
additional 60 square feet of signage.  Mr. Manion stated the sign would be located on the side of 
the building next to Wal-Mart. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department had no comment. 
 
Mr. Larry Waye moved to approve this request as submitted.  Mr. Greg Dobbs seconded the 
motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 8  
 
Application and appeal of Bryan Wallace for an eight foot rear yard setback variance from 
Section 25-10.9(d) and as defined in Article I, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance 
to allow for the construction of a new residence at 2610 Summerwind Dr. SE, property located in 
a R-2 Single Family Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Bryan Wallace presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Wallace stated he needed an 8 foot 
rear-yard setback variance in order to construct a new house. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department had no comment. 
 
Mr. Greg Dobbs moved to approve this request as submitted.  Ms. Frances Tate seconded the 
motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
 

6 
 



CASE NO 9 
 
Application and appeal of Joel and Sara Denbo for an additional 4 foot rear yard setback 
variance to Section 25-10.8(2)(c) and as defined in Article I, as amended and adopted, of the 
Zoning Ordinance to construct an addition at 2115 Stratford Pl SE, property located in a R-1 
Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Craig Creighton representative for the applicant presented this case to the Board.   Mr. 
Creighton stated an error was made when the variance request was applied for in September.  
Mr. Creighton further stated due to the mistake an additional 4 foot rear-yard setback variance 
was needed for their addition. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department had no comment. 
 
Mr. Mike Harris moved to approve this request as submitted.  Mr. Greg Dobbs seconded the 
motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
Chairman, Kent Lawrence stated there would be no December meeting due to the Holidays.  
However, if a case should arise that must be addressed before the regular January meeting The 
Board will hold a special called meeting on January 7, 2013. 
 
Meeting Adjourned 4:30 
 
 
 
     _________________________ 
 
     Chairman, Kent Lawrence 

 
 

  

7 
 



 
AGENDA NOVEMBER 26, 2013 

 
CASE NO 1 
 
Application and appeal of LaJuan D. Clark for a determination as a use permitted on 
appeal as allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, 
of the Zoning Ordinance to have an administrative office for a trucking company at 2506 
13th St SE, property located in a PRD-6 Planned Residential Zoning District. 
 
CASE NO 2 
 
Application and appeal of Ella Martin for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the 
Zoning Ordinance to have an administrative office for an on-line wholesale business as well 
as a wedding consultant, and jewelry design business at 3503 Pinehurst DR SW, property 
located in a R-2 Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
CASE NO 3 
 
Application and appeal of Seth Adgate for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the 
Zoning Ordinance to have an administrative office for a graphics and video design business 
at 1018 Sherman ST SE, property located in a R-3-H Single-Family Historic Zoning 
District. 
 
CASE NO 4 
 
Application and appeal of Terry and Liliya Taylor for a determination as a use permitted 
on appeal as allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and 
adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have an administrative office for a food service 
business at 4505 Arrowhead DR SE, property located in a R-1 Single-Family Zoning 
District. 
 
CASE NO 5 
 
Application and appeal of Terry and Liliya Taylor for a use permitted on appeal to Section 
25-113 to have a temporary business selling ethnic cuisine from a food trailer in the 
parking lot at 214 6th Ave SE, property located in a B-2 General Business Zoning District. 
 
CASE NO 6 
 
Application and appeal of Gemstone Foods for a variance from Section 25-16(2) of the 
Zoning Ordinance to be able to deviate from the required on-site employee parking at 641 
Holly St NE, property located in a M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District. 
 

8 
 



 
 

 
  

9 
 



 
 
 

CASE NO 1  2506 13TH ST SE 

10 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

11 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP 2506 13TH ST SE 

12 
 



 
 
 
 
 

13 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE 

14 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP  3503 PINEHURST DR SW 
 

15 
 



 
 
 
 

CASE NO 3  1018 SHERMAN ST SE 

16 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE 

17 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP 1018 SHERMAN ST SE 
 

18 
 



 
CASE NO 4  4505 ARROWHEAD DR SE 

 
 

19 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

20 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP 4505 ARROWHEAD DR SE 

21 
 



 
 
 

CASE NO 5  214 6TH AVE SE 
 

22 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT

23 
 



 
 

 
COMBINED PICTURES FOR CASE 4 & 5 

 
 

24 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PICTURE 1 KITCHEN CASE 4 & 5 
 

25 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PICTURE 2 TRAILER CASE 4 & 5 

26 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PIC. 3 ST. VIEW CASE 4 & 5 Ext. VEGGIE STAND 

 

27 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PICTURE 4 STREET VIEW CASE 4 & 5 
 

28 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP  216 6TH AVE SE 

29 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

CASE NO 6  641 HOLLY ST NE 
 

30 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP 641 HOLLY ST NE 

31 
 


	AGENDA
	Minutes October 29, 2013
	Agenda November 26, 2013
	case no 1  2506 13th St SE
	QUESTIONNAIRE

	location map 2506 13th st se
	QUESTIONNAIRE
	LOCATION MAP  3503 PINEHURST DR SW

	CASE NO 3  1018 sherman st se
	QUESTIONNAIRE
	LOCATION MAP 1018 SHERMAN ST SE

	case no 4  4505 arrowhead dr se
	QUESTIONNAIRE
	LOCATION MAP 4505 ARROWHEAD DR SE

	CASE NO 5  214 6TH AVE SE
	LEASE AGREEMENT
	COMBINED PICTURES FOR CASE 4 & 5
	PICTURE 1 KITCHEN CASE 4 & 5
	PICTURE 2 TRAILER CASE 4 & 5
	PIC. 3 ST. VIEW CASE 4 & 5 Ext. VEGGIE STAND
	PICTURE 4 STREET VIEW CASE 4 & 5
	LOCATION MAP  216 6TH AVE SE

	CASE NO 6  641 HOLLY ST NE
	LOCATION MAP 641 HOLLY ST NE


